
1 
 

UNION COUNTY LAND REUTILIZATION CORPORATION BOARD  
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF JULY 13, 2023 

 
Attendance: 
 
Voting Members Andrew Smarra, President and Union County Treasurer; David A. Lawrence, Union 
County Commissioner; Dave Burke, Union County Commissioner; Terry Emery, Marysville City 
Manager; and Shelley Beeney, Local Realtor were present. 
 
Also in attendance were: Savannah Allen, Union County-Marysville Economic Development Project 
Coordinator; Thayne Gray, Union County Assistant Prosecuting Attorney; Zach Andrews, City of 
Marysville Code Enforcement; William Narducci, Union County Administrator; Brad Lutz, Marysville 
Deputy City Manager/Finance Director; Eric Phillips, Economic Development Director; Letitia Rayl, 
Assistant County Administrator/Budget Officer; and Sara Early, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
and Acting Secretary to the Land Reutilization Corporation Board. 
 
Mr. Smarra called the meeting to order at 8:29 a.m. 
 
Resolution 23-32 – Approval of June 1, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Lawrence and seconded by Commissioner Burke to approve the 
June 1, 2023 meeting minutes.  All in favor, motion carried. 
 
Financial Report 
 
The following information was circulated by Ms. Rayl prior to this meeting: 

 



2 
 

 
Mr. Smarra stated that the payment for Advanced Demolition Services is for 401 East 5th Street/Former 
Swifty Gas Station.  It was well under budget.   
 
Mr. Andrews stated that he will schedule the final inspection. 
 
Mr. Emery asked how the property will get mowed. 



3 
 

 
Mr. Smarra stated that the LRC has an increasing number of properties that need mowed.   
 
Ms. Rayl stated that Larry Poling provides mowing services for Union County.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence asked if that person can be hired to mow the LRC properties on a regular basis. 
 
Mr. Andrews and Mr. Emery stated that the mowing should be scheduled on a biweekly basis.   
 
Resolution 23-33 – Approve Administrative Services Agreement Between the LUC Regional 
Planning Commission and the Union County Land Reutilization Corporation 
 
Mr. Smarra stated that there have been previous discussions regarding the LUC Regional Planning 
Commission providing administrative services.  There was a subsequent meeting and they agreed to 
engage them for administrative services.  Presently, they do not provide accounting services.  Mr. Smarra 
stated that he will continue to do the accounting. 
 
Mr. Smarra noted that Ms. Rayl has resigned as treasurer and Mr. Emery has indicated that Mr. Lutz 
would be willing to handle the check writing for the corporation.  In advance of a vote, Mr. Smarra stated 
that he has put Mr. Lutz on the signature card for the bank. 
 
Ms. Rayl stated that she will meet with Mr. Lutz and provide the rest of the documents in her possession.   
 
Mr. Smarra stated they want to do a number of  properties and with the Brownfield and demolition 
appropriation, they need to move forward on this.  They have targeted properties in  Richwood and 
Magnetic Springs.  Ms. Beeney has volunteered to coordinate with Richwood on a number of properties. 
 
Ms. Rayl stated that the website is built into the agreement.  There has been some discussion regarding 
scanning previous minutes and bylaws onto the website.   
 
 
 
 

(This portion of the page intentionally left blank.) 
 



4 
 

 



5 
 

 



6 
 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Emery and seconded by Commissioner Lawrence to approve the 
Administrative Services Agreement.  All in favor, motion carried. 
 
401 East 5th Street/Former Swifty Gas Station/Brownfield Project 
 
Mr. Smarra stated that this property is 95% complete.  Monitoring wells have been placed and there is 
some finality from BUSTR.  He has spoken to Mr. Emery and Eric Phillips, about the best use of that 
property, which is a restaurant.  They are working on changing zoning for that property, because it is 
currently zoned for 40 parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Andrews stated that it will depend on the size of the restaurant and the outdoor patio. To change the 
zoning, an application must be made to the Planning Commission and then it would go to City Council 
for three readings.  There will be three zoning districts back to back and he suggested checking with 
adjacent property owners to see if they are interested in zoning changes.  They have to transition by 
having a buffer between commercial and residential, which is up to City Council.   
 
Mr. Smarra asked the board to give him permission to request a zoning change for this property. 
 



7 
 

Resolution 23-34 – Authorizing the President of the Land Reutilization Corporation Board, 
Andrew Smarra, to Request a Zoning Change for the Property Located at 401 East Fifth Street, 
Marysville, Ohio 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Lawrence and seconded by Commissioner Burke to approve this 
resolution.  All in favor, motion carried.   
 
301 North Main Street  
 
Mr. Smarra stated that Mr. Narducci sent out a link to the environmental report.  The building, although 
they did not test for, had asbestos, so there will have to be an asbestos remediation.   
 
Mr. Andrews stated that he can contact Dayton Environmental regarding the asbestos remediation. 
 
Ms. Smarra stated that there was nothing unexpected in that report.  He stated that he thinks he previously 
requested authorization to allow him to initiate a contract for asbestos identification and contractually 
start the process of bidding for the demolition and remediation of that site. 
 
Resolution 23-35 – Authorizing the President of the Land Reutilization Corporation Board, 
Andrew Smarra, to Initiate A Contract for Asbestos Identification and to Initiate the Bid Process 
for the Demolition and Remediation of the Property Known as 301 North Main Street, Marysville, 
Ohio 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Burke and seconded by Mr. Emery to approve this resolution.  All 
in favor, motion carried.  (Please note that Resolution 23-35 duplicates Resolution 23-25, which 
was approved on May 4, 2023.) 

 
21910 Raymond Road/ Nash Property 
 
Mr. Gray stated that he has no update on this property. 
 
Ms. Smarra stated that this is a property in need of demolition that the owner received through an 
inheritance. 
 
Mr. Gray stated that the property owner denies owning it and there is also a divorced spouse involved.  
They will probably have to do a foreclosure on the property. 
 
Mr. Smarra stated that this is a nuisance property in Liberty Township. 
 
303 South Main Street/Former Goodwill Location 
 
Mr. Andrews stated that he spoke to the attorney.  The property needs some updates and continues to 
deteriorate. 
 
Mr. Smarra stated that they are not delinquent on their taxes. The cost to fix or demolish the building is 
prohibitive. 
 
Mr. Emery stated that the lot next to it will be cleaned up and will be a new parking lot.  
 
  



8 
 

Parcel No. 2900051180000/Small Parcel in Front of 351 North Maple Street 
 
Mr. Gray stated that he needs to verify that the notice of foreclosure was sent. 
 
Mr. Smarra stated that if it ends up in the land bank, the determination will need to be made as to what to 
do with the property.  Mr. Emery had mentioned that it might be something the city is interested in, and 
since it has no value, the board could consider giving it to the city.   
 
12947 St. Rt. 739/Parcel No. 1300190290000/Lambert Property 
 
Mr. Smarra stated that this is a nuisance lot that is subject to foreclosure.   
 
Mr. Gray stated that the owners vacated the property or could be deceased.  The property stays under the 
owner’s name even if they are deceased.  The spouse moved to Oklahoma.  (Subsequent to the meeting, 
Mr. Gray provided the following owner information:  Charles E. and Pamela J. Lambert, with the last 
known address of 26877 Walls Road, Cameron, OK.) 
 
Ms. Beeney stated that she thought it had a visibility issue.  She asked if they could use the LUC Regional 
Planning Commission to help locate the owners. 
 
Mr. Gray stated that thinks that there had been a foreclosure on this property but will have to verify.  He 
had been working on it and knows that there were issues making service in Oklahoma, so he may have to 
restart the process.  He has to comply with the civil rules for service and internet service is not acceptable 
or posting on a website.    
 
Mr. Smarra stated that he thinks this property has gone through foreclosure once before.   
 
Mr. Gray stated that service can be done by publication, but they have to go through some processes to 
get permission to do that. 
 
Mr. Smarra stated that this property has several dilapidated structures on it and 3’ high grass in the 
summer. 
 
250 West 7th Street/ Raymond Couch Property 
 
This property has been sold and will be removed from future agendas.   
 
Resolution 23-36 – Appointing Brad Lutz as Treasurer of the Union County Land Reutilization 
Corporation 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Lawrence and seconded by Mr. Emery to appoint Brad Lutz as 
treasurer of the Union County Land Reutilization Corporation.  All in favor, motion carried. 
 
  



9 
 

Other Business: 
 
*Designation of William Narducci to act on behalf of Commissioner Burke as a director for the 
Union County Land Reutilization Corporation Board at such times that he is unable to attend the 
meetings of said board 

 
*Designation of Letitia Rayl to act on behalf of Commissioner Lawrence as a director for the Union  
County Land Reutilization Corporation Board at such times that he is unable to attend the 
meetings of said board 
 

 
*There was discussion about how to engage LUC Regional Planning Commission now that there is a 
contract.   
 
Ms. Allen stated that she thinks Heather Martin sends out packets and asks them for submissions on 
blighted properties.   
 



10 
 

Ms. Beeney stated that the Village of Richwood has a committee on blighted properties and had already 
identified several.   
 
Mr. Smarra stated that there have been conversations with the prosecutor’s office regarding moving 
forward on more matters.  The treasurer’s budget does provide for outside counsel and has money 
budgeted for that.  The prosecutor’s office is inundated with work, but perhaps they can have another 
conversation with Mr. Phillips regarding hiring outside counsel to move forward on some of the identified 
properties. 
 
Commissioner Burke stated that Richwood has been waiting two years for some assistance.  
 
Ms. Allen stated that that if things are submitted through the Land Reutilization Corporation, it can be 
prioritized accordingly.   
 
Commissioner Burke stated that they want to coordinate with the prosecutors so that they are able to 
move forward when the funding is ready.   
 
Ms. Beeney stated that she will contact Ms. Martin to begin the process to deal with the identified 
properties.   
 
Mr. Smarra stated that they do not have to use state funds only to move forward on projects since they 
have other funds available. 
 
Commissioner Burke stated that the Mayor of Magnetic Springs sent him information on two properties, 
which he will forward to Mr. Smarra.   
 
Mr. Smarra stated that they can choose to buy some of these properties from the owner and remediate the 
sites.  They can also purchase properties at sheriff sales. 
 
Mr. Gray stated that normally they do not purchase them at sheriff sales, because there is no reason to do 
that.  He will look at the status to see what the tax treatment of property would be if purchased by the land 
bank at a sheriff’s sale.   
 
Resolution 23-37 – Adjourn Meeting 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Lawrence and seconded by Commissioner Burke to adjourn the 
meeting at 9:08 a.m.  All in favor, motion carried.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


